# Service Agreement (Abridged)

An agreement between:

## **Department of Health Chief Executive Officer**

And

**Child and Adolescent Health Service** 

for the period

1 July 2017 - 30 June 2018

## CONTENTS

BAC	KGROUND	. 4
DEF	INED TERMS	. 5
1.	TERM OF AGREEMENT	. 6
2.	ENTIRE AGREEMENT	. 6
2.1	Commission Service Agreements	. 6
2.2	Forward Estimates Contained in this Agreement	. 6
3.	AMENDMENTS TO THIS AGREEMENT	. 7
3.1	Amendment Criteria	. 7
3.2	Notice of Intention to Amend	. 7
3.3	Adjustments	. 7
4.	PUBLICATION OF AGREEMENT	. 7
5.	LEGISLATIVE AND POLICY CONTEXT	. 8
5.1	The Health Services Act 2016	. 8
6.	PURPOSE AND OBJECTIVES OF THIS AGREEMENT	
6.1	Principal Purpose	. 8
6.2	Objectives	. 8
6.3	Scope	. 9
7.	SERVICE DELIVERY	. 9
7.1	Role of System Manager	. 9
7.2	Role of Health Service Provider	. 9
7.3	Clinical Commissioning	10
7.4	Accreditation and registration requirements	10
7.5	Notification and provision of information	10
7.6	Agreements with other Health Service Providers	10
8.	FUNDING AND PURCHASED ACTIVITY TO DELIVER SERVICES	11
8.1		
	Funding	11
8.2	Election commitments	11
8.2 8.3		11
	Election commitments	11 11
8.3	Election commitments	11 11 11
8.3 8.4 <b>9.</b>	Election commitments Activity Delivery of Purchased Activity	11 11 11 <b>11</b>
8.3 8.4 <b>9.</b> 9.1	Election commitments Activity Delivery of Purchased Activity SERVICE STANDARDS - THE PERFORMANCE POLICY FRAMEWORK	11 11 11 <b>11</b> 12
8.3 8.4	Election commitments Activity Delivery of Purchased Activity SERVICE STANDARDS - THE PERFORMANCE POLICY FRAMEWORK Performance Measures and Operational Targets	11 11 11 <b>11</b> 12 12

10.	STRATEGIC CONTEXT	13
10.1	WA Health System Strategic Intent 2015-2020	13
10.2	WA Aboriginal Health and Wellbeing Framework 2015-2030	13
10.3	Additional Policy Considerations	13
11.	WA HEALTH SYSTEM OUTCOME BASED MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK	14
12.	FUNDING INFORMATION CONTAINED IN SCHEDULES	14
13.	SUMMARY OF SCHEDULES	15
Outc	ome Based Resource Allocation	17
A.	CAHS Summary of Activity and Funding	18
CAH	S Commonwealth Specific Purpose Payment Activity and Funding	19

## BACKGROUND

- A. This Agreement supports the delivery of safe, quality, financially sustainable and accountable healthcare for all Western Australians by setting out the service and performance expectations and funding arrangements for the Child and Adolescent Health Service (CAHS).
- B. This Agreement details the health services that the Department CEO will purchase from the CAHS and the services the CAHS will deliver during the 2017-18 financial year.
- C. Through execution of this Agreement the CAHS agrees to meet the service obligations and performance requirements as detailed in this Agreement. The Department CEO agrees to provide the funding and other support services as outlined in this Agreement.
- D. This Agreement is representative of the partnership between the Department CEO and the CAHS and shared commitment to deliver on WA Government's goal of greater focus on achieving results in key service delivery areas for the benefit of all Western Australians.
- E. This Agreement is executed in accordance with part five of the *Health Services Act 2016*.

## **DEFINED TERMS**

In this Agreement:

- 1. Activity Based Funding (ABF) means the funding framework which is used to fund public health care services delivered across Western Australia.
- 2. Agreement means this agreement and any Schedules to this agreement.
- 3. Act means the Health Services Act 2016.
- 4. **Block Funded Services** relates to those health services for which activity data is not yet available (e.g. non-admitted mental health; teaching, training and research).
- 5. Chief Executive (CE), in relation to a Health Service Provider, means the person appointed as chief executive of the Health Service Provider under section 108(1) of the Act.
- 6. Commission CEO has the meaning given in section 43 of the Act.
- 7. **Department** means the Department of Health as the Department of the Public Service principally assisting the Minister in the administration of the Act.
- 8. Department CEO means the chief executive officer of the Department.
- 9. Health Service has the meaning given in section 7 of the Act.
- 10. **Health Service Provider (HSP)** means a Health Service Provider established by an order made under section 32(1)(b) of the Act.
- 11.**HSS** means the Chief Executive Governed Health Service Provider Health Support Services.
- 12. MHC means the Western Australian Mental Health Commission.
- 13. **OBM** means the WA health system Outcome Based Management Framework as endorsed by the Under Treasurer.
- 14. **OSR** means Own Source Revenue.
- 15. **Parties** means the Department CEO and the Health Service Provider to which this Agreement applies and "Party" means any one of them.
- 16. **PMP** means the Performance Management Policy.
- 17. **Performance Indicator** provides an 'indication' of progress towards achieving the organisation's objectives or outputs.
- 18. Policy Framework means a policy framework issued under section 26 of the Act.
- 19. **Schedule** means a schedule to this Agreement.
- 20. **Term** means the period of this agreement as detailed in clause 1 'Term of Agreement'.
- 21. **Transfer Period** means the period commencing on the date that the first patient arrives at Perth Children's Hospital and ending when all aspects of clinical commissioning of Perth Children's Hospital have been completed.
- 22. WA means the State of Western Australia.
- 23. WA health system has the meaning given in section 19(1) of the Act.

## **1. TERM OF AGREEMENT**

In accordance with section 49 of the Act the term of this agreement is for the period of 1 July 2017 to 30 June 2018.

This Agreement, pursuant to Section 46(3) of the Act, includes the health services to be provided by the CAHS during the Term of this Agreement that are within the overall expense limit set by the Department CEO in accordance with the State Government's purchasing intentions.

## 2. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement and understanding of the Parties and supersedes any previous agreement between the Parties as to the subject matter of this Agreement.

## 2.1 Commission Service Agreements

The MHC as provided for under section 45 of the Act has entered into a commission service agreement for the provision of mental health services by the CAHS for the period of 1 July 2017 to 30 June 2018.

An overview of the funding provided under the commission service agreement between the MHC and the CAHS is included in Schedule 4 contained in clause 13 of this Agreement in order to provide the CAHS with an understanding of how the funding provided by the MHC contributes to the overall expense limit detailed in this Agreement. The terms of commission service agreements do not form part of this Agreement and any amendment of the commission service agreements will be made as a result of negotiation between the MHC and the CAHS.

#### 2.2 Forward Estimates Contained in this Agreement

In order to provide the CAHS with a framework in which to make future planning decisions, forward estimates that provide the financial position for the three years beyond the 2017-18 financial year have been included in the schedules contained within clause 13 of this Agreement. The funding estimates are based on and consistent with the current approved budget settings for the WA health system.

The inclusion of forward estimates, whilst they might be an indication of the base for future funding years, are in no way a representation or offer of funding by the Department CEO to the CAHS.

## **3. AMENDMENTS TO THIS AGREEMENT**

The Parties may amend this Agreement in accordance with section 50 of the Act.

An amendment made under section 50 of the Act becomes an addendum to the original Agreement and forms the revised basis on which the Agreement will be conducted.

Adjustments to the information set out in the contents of this Agreement as detailed in the schedules contained in clause 13 will be provided through separate documents, that may be issued by the Department during the term of the Agreement.

#### 3.1 Amendment Criteria

An amendment of this Agreement will occur when there is a change to the Department CEO's purchasing intentions.

An amendment for the purposes of this Agreement is a change to funding, to deliverables or to other requirements contained within this Agreement. Further information on the amendment process is detailed within the Funding and Purchasing Guidelines issued under the Purchasing and Resource Allocation Policy Framework:

http://www.health.wa.gov.au/circularsnew/Purchasing\_and\_Resource\_Allocation.cfm

#### 3.2 Notice of Intention to Amend

In accordance with section 50(1) of the Act if either Party wants to amend the terms of this Agreement, notice of this intention must be provided in writing within a reasonable timeframe, before the date on which the amendment is required to take effect.

#### 3.3 Adjustments

Adjustments are changes to funding levels and targets that do not alter the Department CEO's purchasing intentions. Further information is detailed in the Funding and Purchasing Guidelines issued under the Purchasing and Resource Allocation Policy Framework.

## 4. PUBLICATION OF AGREEMENT

The Department will publish an abridged version of this Agreement on the WA health system internet site, in accordance with Schedule D9 of the National Health Reform Agreement. Any subsequent amendments to this Agreement will also be published in accordance with Schedule D9 of the National Health Reform Agreement.

## 5. LEGISLATIVE AND POLICY CONTEXT

## 5.1 The Health Services Act 2016

The Act supports the WA health system's vision to deliver a safe, high quality, sustainable health system for all Western Australians including:

- to promote and protect the health status of Western Australians
- to identify and respond to opportunities to reduce inequities in the health status
- to provide access to safe, high quality, evidence-based health services
- to promote a patient-centred continuum of care in the provision of health services
- to coordinate the provision of an integrated system of health services and health policies
- to promote effectiveness, efficiency and innovation in the provision of health services and teaching, training, research and other services within the available resources
- to engage and support the health workforce in the planning and provision of health services and teaching, training, research and other services.

## 6. PURPOSE AND OBJECTIVES OF THIS AGREEMENT

#### 6.1 Principal Purpose

#### 6.2 **Objectives**

The objectives of this Agreement, as prescribed in section 46 of the Act, are to detail:

- a) the health services to be provided to the State by the Health Service Provider
- b) the teaching, training and research in support of the provision of health services to be provided
- c) the funding to be provided to the Health Service Provider for the provision of the services, including the way in which the funding is to be provided;
- d) the performance measures and operational targets for the provision of the services by the Health Service Provider
- e) how the evaluation and review of results in relation to the performance measures and operational targets is to be carried out
- f) the performance data and other data to be provided by the Health Service Provider to the Department CEO, including how, and how often, the data is to be provided
- g) any other matter the Department CEO considers relevant to the provision of the services by the Health Service Provider.

Where appropriate, reference will be made in the Agreement to key Policy Frameworks, issued by the Department CEO pursuant to part three, division two of the Act.

#### 6.3 Scope

This Agreement outlines the services that the Department CEO will purchase from the CAHS during the term of this Agreement.

## 7. SERVICE DELIVERY

#### 7.1 Role of System Manager

The main role of the Department CEO under this Agreement is to provide the funding and performance management function to support the CAHS to deliver the services in accordance with the Act.

## 7.2 Role of Health Service Provider

The main role of the CAHS under this Agreement is to provide the services detailed in the schedules contained in clause 13, as well as teaching, training and research in support of the provision of health services. The delivery of the services must be in accordance with the performance measurers and targets set by the Department CEO in accordance with section 46(3)(d),(e) and (f) of the Act.

The CAHS has the control and management of the following facilities:

- Princess Margaret Hospital to the date that the final patient moves from the Princess Margaret Hospital.
- Perth Children's Hospital from the date that the first patient arrives at the Perth Children's Hospital.

The CAHS is responsible for providing health services at the following facilities:

- Princess Margaret Hospital to the date that the final patient moves from the Princess Margaret Hospital.
- Perth Children's Hospital from the date that the first patient arrives at Perth Children's Hospital.

The CAHS will deliver the services in accordance with the Agreement. This includes, but is not limited to:

- delivering the services in a safe and timely and efficient manner using the standard of care and foresight expected of an experienced provider
- acting in accordance with the highest applicable professional ethics, principles and standards
- demonstrating a commitment to ethical practices and behaviours, and implementing these practices through appropriate training and monitoring.

When delivering the services, the CAHS is required to comply with (among other things):

- all standards as gazetted under applicable Acts and standards endorsed by the Department CEO
- all applicable Department Policy Frameworks
- performance targets (as referred to in clause 9 of this Agreement)
- laws including those related to fire protection, industrial relations, employment, health, general safety and taxation.

## 7.3 Clinical Commissioning

The Department CEO will undertake all aspects of clinical commissioning of Perth Children's Hospital during the Transfer Period.

## 7.4 Accreditation and registration requirements

The CAHS must deliver the services purchased by the Department CEO in the Agreement in accordance with the Clinical Governance, Safety and Quality Policy Framework which specifies the clinical governance, safety and quality requirements that all Health Service Providers must comply with in order to ensure effective and consistent clinical care across the WA health system.

## 7.5 Notification and provision of information

The CAHS must brief the Department CEO about all matters that the Department CEO should reasonably be made aware of. This may include, an incident involving a person receiving a service, or an issue that impacts on the delivery or sustainability of service, or the ability of the CAHS to meet its obligations under this Agreement. Certain applicable Department policies may also deal with certain matters that the Department must be made aware of or certain information that must be provided to the Department by the CAHS.

The Department will provide the CAHS with access to all applicable Department policies and standards. The Department must brief the CAHS about matters that the CAHS should reasonably be made aware of in order to undertake the services in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

#### 7.6 Agreements with other Health Service Providers

In accordance with section 48(2) of the Act, the CAHS may agree with any Health Service Provider for that Health Service Provider to provide services for the CAHS according to the CAHS's business needs.

The terms of an agreement made pursuant to section 48(2) of the Act do not limit the CAHS obligations under this Agreement, including the performance standards provided for in this Agreement.

## 8. FUNDING AND PURCHASED ACTIVITY TO DELIVER SERVICES

## 8.1 Funding

The Department CEO will fund the CAHS to meet its service delivery obligations under this Agreement in accordance with the schedules contained in clause 13 of this Agreement. A summary of the funding to be paid to the CAHS is set out in the Schedule titled CAHS Summary of Activity and Funding.

The CAHS is to use the funding provided by the Department only for the delivery of services specified under the Agreement. The funding will include direct service costs and the cost of overheads that the Department considers inherent in the delivery of the services.

#### 8.2 Election commitments

The funding to be provided during the Term of this Agreement also includes election commitments that will be reflected in the 2017-18 Budget.

Progress on implementation of election commitments will be reviewed and monitored on a regular basis.

## 8.3 Activity

The WA health system ABF operating model allocates funding on the basis of the number of patients and the types of treatments at a set price.

#### 8.4 Delivery of Purchased Activity

The Department and the CAHS will monitor actual activity against purchased levels, taking action as necessary to ensure delivery of purchased levels is achieved.

The CAHS has a responsibility to actively monitor variances from purchased activity levels, and will notify the Department immediately as soon as the CAHS becomes aware that variances to this Agreement are likely to occur.

Should the CAHS be unable to deliver the activity that has been funded, the Department has the discretion to determine whether a financial adjustment should be applied. This will follow a joint process with the CAHS to understand the cause of the under-delivery and any remedial action plan in accordance with the policy referred to in clause 9 of this Agreement.

Additional information on the funding and purchased activity detailed in this Agreement can be found in the Funding and Purchasing Guidelines 2017-18.

## 9. SERVICE STANDARDS - THE PERFORMANCE POLICY FRAMEWORK

The performance reporting, monitoring, evaluation and management of the CAHS in relation to the terms of this Agreement is as prescribed in the Performance Policy Framework: <u>http://www.health.wa.gov.au/circularsnew/Performance.cfm</u>.

## 9.1 Performance Measures and Operational Targets

The performance indicators, targets and thresholds that support the delivery of the service agreement operational targets are listed in the PMP. The PMP details the performance management and intervention processes as well as the performance reporting, monitoring and evaluation processes.

## 9.2 Evaluation and Review of Performance Results

The PMP is based on a responsive regulation intervention model. The model is a collaborative approach that enables accountability through agreed mechanisms that are responsive when performance issues have been identified. The performance management components of the PMP comprise:

- on-going review of Health Service Provider performance
- identifying a performance concern and determining the appropriate response and agreed timeframe to address the concern
- deciding when a performance recovery plan is required and the timeframe it is required
- determining the level of intervention when required and when the performance intervention needs to be escalated or de-escalated.

Regular performance review meetings will be held between the Department CEO and the CAHS, or representatives of either Party. The performance reports that enable the Department CEO to monitor and evaluate the CAHS's performance are listed in the PMP. The performance reports are an important part of the performance review meetings. The frequency of the meetings is based on the CAHS's performance and is determined by the Department CEO.

#### 9.3 **Performance Data**

In accordance with section 34(2)(n) of the Act the CAHS is required to provide performance data for the monthly production of the performance reports as required by the Department CEO, in accordance with the Information Management Policy Framework.

#### 9.4 Link to Annual Reporting

Annual Reporting is required under the *Financial Management Act 2006*. The key performance indicators (KPIs) within the Annual Report for Health Service Providers are approved by the Under Treasurer and are auditable by the Office of the Attorney General.

Efficiency KPI targets are set on a system-wide level through the Government Budget Statements. The Department of Health will determine the CAHS specific targets through a rigorous modelling process that utilises the 2017-18 Service Agreement and other relevant data, as appropriate.

Effectiveness KPI targets are set at a Health Service Provider level by the Department of Health.

The Department will notify the CAHS on the Efficiency and Effectiveness KPI targets for Annual Reporting.

## **10. STRATEGIC CONTEXT**

This Agreement is informed by a wider strategic context related to the delivery of safe, quality, financial sustainable and accountable healthcare for all Western Australians. The delivery of services within the following strategic context is the mutual responsibility of both Parties, whether with reference to supporting information and guidelines or mandatory policy requirements.

#### 10.1 WA Health System Strategic Intent 2015-2020

The Strategic Intent defines the WA health system's overarching vision, values and priorities. The WA health system's vision is delivering a safe, high quality, sustainable health system for all Western Australians.

The WA health system's strategic priorities are focused on a continuum of care to support and guide health care through integrated service delivery from prevention and health promotion, early intervention, primary care through to diagnosis, treatment, rehabilitation and palliation, ensuring all Western Australians receive safe, high quality and accessible health care.

#### 10.2 WA Aboriginal Health and Wellbeing Framework 2015-2030

In recognition of the WA health system's commitment to improving the health of Aboriginal people, in 2017-18, it is expected that the CAHS will develop an ongoing dialogue with the Department to progress and report against the key initiatives and health service measures.

The Aboriginal Health Framework's six strategic directions are:

- 1. promote good health across the life-course
- 2. prevention and early intervention
- 3. a culturally respectful and non-discriminatory health system
- 4. individual, family and community wellbeing
- 5. a strong, skilled and growing Aboriginal health workforce
- 6. equitable and timely access to the best quality and safe care.

The Aboriginal Health Framework bases its context within the WA health system Strategic Intent 2015-2020 which commits the WA health system to strengthen and embed the approach to improve the health and wellbeing of Aboriginal people living in WA.

#### **10.3 Additional Policy Considerations**

This Agreement is informed by, but not limited to, the following frameworks, policies, guidelines and plans:

- Clinical Services Framework 2014-2024
- Purchasing and Resource Allocation Policy Framework
- Performance Policy Framework
- Outcome Based Management Policy Framework
- Clinical Governance, Safety and Quality Policy Framework
- Research Policy Framework
- Clinical Teaching and Training Policy Framework
- ICT Policy Framework

## 11. WA HEALTH SYSTEM OUTCOME BASED MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The WA health system operates under an Outcome Based Management (OBM) Framework, pursuant to its legislative obligation as a WA Government Agency under section 61 of the *Financial Management Act 2006* and Treasurer's Instruction 904.

The ten OBM services as captured in the WA health system's budget papers are detailed below:

- 1. Public Hospital Admitted Services
- 2. Public Hospital Emergency Services
- 3. Public Hospital Non-Admitted Services
- 4. Mental Health Services
- 5. Aged and Continuing Care Services
- 6. Public and Community Health Services
- 7. Community Dental Health Services
- 8. Small Rural Hospital Services
- 9. Health System Management Policy and Corporate Services
- 10. Health Support Services

The funding within this Agreement is allocated within the ten OBM services, as reflected in the schedules contained in clause 13. There is also an additional funding schedule termed System Manager Initiatives included as part of this Agreement which do not fall within the WA health system OBM Framework services listed above.

The Department CEO is responsible as the system purchaser to purchase services one through to eight from Health Service Providers and detail this purchasing service delivery arrangement in the Service Agreements issued in accordance with the Act.

Further detail on the WA health system's OBM Framework can be viewed at <u>http://ww2.health.wa.gov.au/Our-performance</u> (linked to be established on 1 July 2017).

## **12. FUNDING INFORMATION CONTAINED IN SCHEDULES**

The funding provided to the CAHS under the terms of this Agreement is provided in the schedules contained in clause 13, which set out:

- the activity purchased by the Department CEO
- the funding provided for delivery of the purchased activity
- an overview of the purchased services which is required to be provided throughout the Term of this Agreement.

## **13. SUMMARY OF SCHEDULES**

A high level summary of the funding Schedules that form part of this Agreement for the CAHS is provided in Table 1 below.

Table 1: Summary of the Schedules which form part of the Agreement

Α.	<b>Summary of Activity and Funding</b> – An overarching summary of the activity and funding purchased by the Department CEO and delivered by the CAHS pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.
	<b>Commonwealth Specific Purpose Payment Activity and Funding</b> – A summary of amount of Commonwealth funding (value and proportion) for inscope activity only and is a subset of the Summary of Activity and Funding Schedule

#### Parties to the Agreement:

Executed as a Service Agreement in the state of Western Australia.

#### Parties to the Agreement:

#### Department CEO

Dr David J Russell-Weisz Director General Department of Health

Date:



The Common Seal of the Child and Adolescent Health Service was hereunto affixed in the presence of:

MS-Deborah-Karasinski- Prof GAOFERRY J DOBB

Board Chair Child and Adolescent Health Service

Date: 30th JUNE 2017

Dr Robyn Lawrence Chief Executive Child and Adolescent Health Service

Date: 30.6.17

DEPUTY

Signed:

Signed:



## **Outcome Based Resource Allocation**

Government WA Health Desire Goal System Agency Goal		Desired Outcome	Services				
Greater focus on achieving results in key service delivery areas for the benefit of Western Australians	Delivery of safe, quality, financially sustainable and accountable healthcare for all Western Australians	<b>Outcome 1:</b> Public hospital based services that enable effective treatment and restorative health care for Western Australians	<ol> <li>Public Hospital Admitted Services</li> <li>Public Hospital Emergency Services</li> <li>Public Hospital Non-Admitted Services</li> <li>Mental Health Services</li> </ol>				
		Outcome 2: Prevention, health promotion and aged and continuing care services that help Western Australians to live healthy and safe lives	<ol> <li>5. Aged and Continuing Care Services</li> <li>6. Public and Community Health Services</li> <li>7. Community Dental Health Services</li> <li>8. Small Rural Hospital Services</li> </ol>				
		Outcome 3: Strategic leadership, planning and support services that enable a safe, high quality and sustainable WA health system	<ul> <li>9. Health System Management - Policy and Corporate Services</li> <li>10. Health Support Services</li> </ul>				

## A. CAHS Summary of Activity and Funding

		201	6-17	201	6-17	201	7-18	201	8-19	201	9-20	2020	0-21
	OBM Sub-Service		rvice ement	Dee Amen	d of dment		vice ement		ward mate		vard mate		ward mate
		WAUs	\$'000	WAUs	\$'000	WAUs	\$'000	WAUs	\$'000	WAUs	\$'000	WAUs	\$'000
1	Public Hospital Admitted Services	29,902	216,566	29,902	215,060	34,633	256,791	32,997	250,897	33,255	256,118	33,488	223,090
2	Public Hospital Emergency Services	6,618	46,233	6,618	45,965	6,747	49,492	6,655	49,613	6,884	51,350	7,078	46,950
3	Public Hospital Non-Admitted Services	13,047	83,997	13,047	83,743	11,169	76,866	11,432	79,417	11,712	82,043	11,986	79,414
4	Mental Health Services	2,652	63,942	2,652	63,836	2,185	67,278	2,135	21,723	2,178	22,228	2,219	17,755
5	Aged and Continuing Care Services	-	5,208	-	5,420	-	5,521	-	1,179	-	1,200	-	1,208
6	Public and Community Health Services	-	145,684	-	171,240	-	142,984	-	145,484	-	149,372	-	139,874
7	Community Dental Health Services	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
8	Small Rural Hospital Services	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
9	Health System Management - Policy and Corporate Services	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
10	Health Support Services	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
	System Manager Initiatives	-	11,137	-	15,880	-	15,452	-	5,819	-	7,206	-	11,473
	Expense Transfer	-	-	-	185	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
	Carry-over	-	-	-	1,726	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
	Total Expense Limit	52,219	572,767	52,219	603,056	54,734	614,385	53,219	554,131	54,029	569,516	54,771	519,765

Notes

a. The figures in all schedules include an allocation for Financial Products and HSS Resources Received Free of Charge. These may be subject to change due to changes in the budget.

## CAHS Commonwealth Specific Purpose Payment Activity and Funding

	National Efficient	Total expected	Commonwealth			
ABF Service group	Price (NEP\$) (as set by IHPA)	NWAU (#)	Funding Rate (%)	Contribution (\$)		
Acute Admitted	4,910	31,215	43.1	66,085,654		
Admitted Mental Health	4,910	2,157	38.3	4,051,479		
Sub-Acute	4,910	_	_	_		
Emergency Department	4,910	6,443	42.4	13,415,238		
Non Admitted	4,910	11,504	51.4	29,033,696		
ABF Total	4,910	51,319	44.7	112,586,066		

	Total	Commor	State	
Non-ABF Service group	Contribution (\$)	Contribution (\$)	Funding Rate (%)	Contribution (\$)
Non Admitted Mental Health	2,702,875	788,106	29.2	1,914,769
Other 'In Scope' Program Services	_	_		
Rural CSO sites	-	_		
Teaching, Training and Research	20,983,185	7,998,176	38.1	12,985,010
Total Block Funding	23,686,060	8,786,282	37.1	14,899,779

#### Note:

This schedule relates to Commonwealth in-scope activity only and is a subset of the Summary of Activity and Funding Schedule.